
MEMBERS: 

James Bailey, Chairman  Dane Grey, Board Member 

Craig Gibbs, Esq. Vice Chairman    Todd Froats, Board Member  

Ron Moody, Secretary Marc Padgett, Board Member 

Oliver Barakat, Board Member Braxton Gillam, Esq. Board Member 

Carol Worsham, Board Member   

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

AGENDA 

City Hall at St. James Building  

117 W. Duval Street, 1st Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room 

Jacksonville, Florida  32202  

Wednesday, May 15, 2019 – 1:00 P.M. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance

II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD 

A. Chief Executive Officer Candidate Interviews

i) Candidate A

ii) Candidate B

iii) Candidate C

B. April  17, 2019 Downtown Investment Authority Meeting Minutes

C. Resolution 2019-05-01: DIA Administrative Budget

D. Resolution 2019-05-02: Downtown Vision, Inc. Budget

III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 

A. April 12, 2019 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes

B. April 17, 2019 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes

C. Resolution 2019-05-03: Acceptance of Unsolicited Offer to Purchase

D. Resolution 2019-05-04: Tax Increment District Budgets

E. Vestcor Presentation

IV. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

V. CHAIRMAN REPORT 

VI. DDRB BRIEFING Summary Memo Provided 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

X. ADJOURN 



 
 

Downtown Investment Authority 
City Hall at St. James Building,  

117 W. Duval Street, First Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room    
Jacksonville, FL. 32202  

Wednesday, May 15, 2019 – 1:00 p.m.  
 

 Community Redevelopment Agency 
   

MEETING MINUTES 
 
Board Members Present:   Craig Gibbs, Esq., Vice Chairman; Ron Moody, Secretary; Oliver 
Barakat; Todd Froats; Braxton Gillam, Dane Grey, Marc Padgett and Carol Worsham  
 
Board Members Absent:  Jim Bailey, Chairman  
 
Mayor’s Staff:   Dr. Johnny Gaffney, Mayor’s Office, Boards and Commission Liaison   
 
DIA Staff:  Brian Hughes, Office of the Mayor Chief of Staff and Interim Chief Executive 
Officer; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; and Karen Underwood-Eiland, Executive Assistant. 
 
City Staff: Diane Moser, Director of employee Services 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.   
Meeting Convened Immediately Following DIA Meeting  

 
Community Redevelopment Board Meeting  

 
Interim CEO Hughes called the CRA Meeting to order.  
 
III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING 
 
 
A. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 12, 2019 COMMUNITY 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING MINUTES.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY 
BOARD MEMBER PADGETT APPROVING THE APRIL 12, 2019 COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING MINUTES.  
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.  
 
 
B. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 17, 2019 COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY MEETING MINUTES 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER MOODY APPROVING THE APRIL 17, 2019 DIA MEETING MINUTES 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.  
 



Community Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, May 15, 2019 
Page 2 of 4 

C. RESOLUTION 2019-05-03 ACCEPTANCE OF UNSOLICITED OFFER TO 
PURCHASE. 

 RESOLUTION 2019-05-03  
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(THE “DIA”) AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF DUVAL COUNTY TAX 
PARCEL 073794 0100 (“SITE”) TO RYAN COMPANIES US, INC., IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR FINANCIAL OFFER OF APRIL 9, 2019 
OF TWO MILLION SIX HUNDRED THOUSAND AND ZERO DOLLARS 
($2,600,000.00); INSTRUCTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO 
EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MOODY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER GREY. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0. 
 
 
D.             RESOLUTION 2019-05-04:  TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT BUDGETS  

 
RESOLUTION 2019-05-04 

RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AS 
THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE NORTH 
BANK AND SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREAS 
ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 BUDGETS FOR THE 
DOWNTOWN EAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHSIDE TAX 
INCREMENT DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MOODY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER PADGETT APPROVED RESOLUTION 2019-05-04.  
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER FROATS AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER MOODY TO ADD BOARD MEMBER GILLAM AS A MEMBER OF THE DIA 
FINANCE/BUDGET COMMITTEE. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Community Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, May 15, 2019 
Page 3 of 4 

E.           VESTCOR PRESENTATION1  
 

RESOLUTION 2019-05-05 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (THE “DIA”) 
INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO ISSUE A 30-DAYS 
NOTICE OF SOLICITATION FOR THE DISPOSITION OF AN APPROXIMATELY 
3.45 ACRES OF CITY-OWNED REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE LAVILLA 
DISTRICT OF DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE, HAVING DUVAL COUNTY TAX 
PARCEL NUMBERS 074846 0000, 07844 0000, 074843 0000, 074847 0000, THE 
WESTERN ½ OF 074828 0005, 074834 0000, 074830 0000, AND 074832 0000 (“SITE”); 
INSTRUCTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY 
ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF 
THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER MOODY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER BARAKAT APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-05-05 
 
THE MOTION PASSED 7-0-1 (Board Member Gillam, Esq. abstained from voting) 
 
Interim Hughes stated that an appraisal can be done in 30 days and any questions about the 
specific terms will be taken up at the next meeting.   
 
 
IV. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT  

 
Interim CEO Hughes noted that whenever the Ryan funding deal is executed, that 2.6 million 
comes into the TIF and is added to the bottom line of the DIA’s balance sheet.  
 
Moca is undergoing a lobby revamp and requested to present at the next meeting. 
 
The process with CBRE related to a resolution that was passed to have Interim CEO Hughes 
engage a market analysis related to the old City Hall and Courthouse parcels process will be 
discussed at the next meeting.  
 
 
V. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT  
 
 NONE 

 
 
 
 
 

 
1 Presentation resulted in CRA Board adopting Resolution 2019-05-05 



Community Redevelopment Agency 
Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, May 15, 2019 
Page 4 of 4 

VI. DDRB BRIEFING 
 

Guy Parola provided a memo summarizing the DDRB May 9th meeting. The next meeting will 
be held Wednesday, June 26, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. on the first floor in the Lynwood Roberts Room.  
 
VII. OLD BUSINESS 

 
NONE 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 

 
NONE 
 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Stanley Scott commented about historic artifacts, plaques for the African-American Community. 
 
There being no further business, Vice Chairman Gibbs adjourned the DIA meeting at 
approximately 5:25 p.m.  
 
The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 

comments of this meeting, a transcript is available upon request.  Please contact Karen 
Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302, 

 



 Downtown Investment Authority 

117 West Duval St., Ste. 310 ▪ Jacksonville, FL 32202 ▪ (904) 630-3492  ▪ www.jaxdowntowninvestment.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  The Downtown Investment Authority Governing Board 

THROUGH: Jim Bailey, Chair 

FROM:  Todd Froats, Chair, DIA Finance & Budget Committee 

Brian Hughes, Mayor’s Chief of Staff, Interim DIA Chief Executive Officer 

RE:  Resolution 2019-05-01: DIA 2019-2020 Administrative Budget 

DATE:  May 15, 2019 

              

Attached please find Resolution 2019-05-01, adopting DIA’s FY 2019-2020 Administrative Budget. The 
projected Administrative Budget is $1,369,554 prior to reimbursement for supervisory allocations from 
the Office of Public Parking. This represents a 7% increase over the Fiscal Year 2018-2019 budget. This 
increase is primarily due to a 4.5% salary increase pursuant to existing agreements with the City’s 
employee bargaining units.  
 
Below are (a) current positions and staffing levels, and (b) proposed position changes.  
 
Below is the current staffing: 

 Chief Executive Officer: Interim CEO 

 Operations Manager: Filled 

 Manager of Finance and Compliance: Vacant 

 Redevelopment Coordinator: Vacant 

 Planner III: Vacant 

 Market Analyst: Vacant 

 Executive Assistant: Filled 
 
Below is proposed staffing changes for Fiscal Year 2019-2020: 

 Chief Executive Officer 

 Operations Manager 

 Manager of Finance and Compliance 

 Redevelopment Coordinator 

 Planner III: Vacant  Communications Coordinator 

 Market Analyst: Vacant Accountant 

 Executive Assistant 

 
Attachments:  Resolution 2019-05-01 
  Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Administrative Budget 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

APPROVE THE ATTACHED ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL 

BUDGET AS PART OF THE CITY’S OVERALL BUDGET APPROVAL; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) has been designated by the 

City of Jacksonville as the Community Redevelopment Agency for community redevelopment 

areas within the boundaries of Downtown pursuant to Ordinance 2012-364-E, and further 

granted authorities via Ordinance 2014-0560; and  

WHEREAS, in order to promote economic development, private capital investment and 

otherwise fulfill the DIA’s purposes, the attached administrative and operational budget for 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 is to be submitted by the DIA’s Chief Executive Officer for consideration 

by the Mayor’s Budget Review Committee and the Jacksonville City Council,  NOW 

THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, By the Downtown Investment Authority: 

  

Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   

 

Section 2.  The DIA respectfully submits and recommends to the City Council of the City of 

Jacksonville the proposed Downtown Investment Authority Administrative and Operational 

Budget included as Attachment ‘A’. 

 

Section 3. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair of the 

DIA Board. 

 

 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

James Bailey, Chairman  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 



PROPOSED DIA ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET
FY 19‐20
4.24.2019

FY 2018/2019 FY 2019/2020
Adopted Budget Proposed Budget

1 Salaries  $615,642 $652,169
2
3 Benefits $146,015 $199,534
4
5 Professional Services DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 03109) $430,000 $430,000
6 Updated Market / Feasibility Study $80,000 $80,000
7 Downtown Master Parks Plan $0 $50,000
8 BID and CRA Plan 5‐year Update $0 $200,000
9 Misc. ‐ Surveys; Appraisals; etc. $75,000 $75,000
10 Real Estate Services & Market Analysis $95,000 $0
11 DRI Reporting & Regulatory Compliance $30,000 $0
12 DRI Comp Plan $150,000 $0
13 Marketing and Promotion $25,000
14
15 Travel Expense (Hotel/Airfare/Meals/Transportation) DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 04002) $13,000 $13,000
16 ICSC National Conference $0 $1,500
17 International Downtown Association (IDA) Conference $0 $1,650
18 Urban Land Institute (ULI) Conference $1,400 $1,450
19 Florida Redevelopment Association (FRA)  Conference $3,200 $2,050
20 CDFA Fla. Roundtable $0 $850
21 American Planning Association (APA)  Conference $1,300 $1,500
22 Jax Chamber Downtown Trips $1,650 $2,500
23 CDFA National Conference $1,075 $1,500
24 Leadership Florida $1,450
25 ABA $1,835
26 FPZA $1,090
27
28 Employee Training DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 05401) $4,500 $4,500
29
30 Marketing & Promotions DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 04801) $25,000 $10,000
31 WJCT Promotion $5,000
32 J Magazine $20,000
33
34 Event Contributions/Sponsorship DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 04918) $10,000 $25,000
35 Jazzfest After Dark $5,000
36 Hispanic Cultural Film Festival $2,000
37 LISC Community Development Awards $3,000
38
39 Misc $3,000 $3,000
40 Transcription Services $15,000 $18,000
41 Legal Notices  $1,500 $1,500
42 Office/Operating  Supplies $3,500 $3,500
43 Food $750 $750
44 Memberships/Dues/Subscriptions $8,500 $8,601
45
46 Total Budget Submitted $1,276,407 $1,369,554
47
48 Supervisory Allocation (From SF 412) DIAD011DIA (Sub Object 09900) ‐$51,077 ‐$51,077
49
50 Total Budget Less Reimbursement $1,225,330 $1,318,477

Budget CategoriesLine



 

RESOLUTION 2019-05-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE THE CITY’S FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION TO 
DOWNTOWN VISION, INC. (“DVI”) AS IDENTIFIED IN DVI’S 2019-
2020 BUDGET; RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY 
COUNCIL APPROVE DVI’S 2019-2020 ANNUAL BUDGET INCLUDED 
AS ATTACHMENT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 

 WHEREAS, DVI provides public services within the Downtown Business Improvement 
District (“BID”) in accordance with the Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement 
(“Agreement”), including, but not limited to, cleaning, marketing, event planning, and the 
Ambassador Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, pursuant to Ordinance 1999-1175-E, created the 
Downtown BID; authorized the imposition of Special Assessments within the BID; and made 
certain findings of fact as to the benefit to be derived from property owners within the BID; and 
authorized execution of the Agreement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council reauthorized the Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement 
between Downtown Vision, Inc. and the City through Ordinance 2005-785-E, Ordinance 2012-
422-E and Ordinance 2019-97-E; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) has been designated by the as 
the Community Redevelopment Agency for community redevelopment areas within the 
boundaries of Downtown pursuant to Ordinance 2012-364-E, and further granted authorities via 
Ordinance 2014-0560-E; and  

 
WHEREAS, the DIA finds that DVI provides valuable, enhanced public services to 

property owners within the BID that could not effectively be provided without financial support 
from the City, NOW THEREFORE 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 
 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   

 
 Section 2. The DIA recommends that the City of Jacksonville continue its 
financial contribution equal to 1.1 mils of the assessed value of City property within DVI’s 
Business Improvement District. 

 
Section 3.  The DIA recommends that the City Council approve DVI’s Fiscal Year 

2019-2020 Budget included as Attachment ‘A’. 
Section 4. This Resolution, 2019-05-02, Shall become effective on the date it is 

signed by the Chair of the DIA Board. 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-02 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 
 

 
WITNESS:       DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
______________________         May 15, 2019 

Craig Gibbs, Vice Chairman  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Downtown		
Vision,		
Incorporated	
 

 
	

214	N.	Hogan	Street	Suite	120,	Jacksonville,	FL	32202		
	|	904.634.0303|	Fax	904.634.8988	

               
 

May 3, 2019 
 
Brian Hughes, CEO 
Downtown Investment Authority 
117 W. Duval Street, #310 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 
 
Re: Downtown Vision budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 (FY19/20) 
 
Dear Mr. Hughes, 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors of Downtown Vision, please accept the 
following budget documents for Downtown Vision for the fiscal year 2019-2020: 
 

1. Budget Office Form Schedule AD AE 
2. FY19/20 Budget for Downtown Vision 
3. Budget Comparison for FY18/19 and FY19/20 
4. Historic City of Jacksonville contribution to Downtown Vision 

These budget documents were approved at our recent meeting of our board of 
directors on Wednesday March 27, 2019. We now seek approval from the DIA 
board of directors, and eventually Mayor’s Office and City Council.  
 
As you know, commercial property owners in our Downtown business 
improvement district pay a 1.1 mils assessment on the taxable value of their 
property to Downtown Vision. These funds are used to complete our mission of 
keeping Downtown clean and safe, marketing Downtown to promote investment 
and ensuring a better overall Downtown experience.   
 
The City of Jacksonville is the largest landowner within the district and we provide 
the same services to the City as we do to private property owners, if not more.  We 
are thrilled that since 2017, the City of Jacksonville has contributed the full amount 
of the assessment on its properties in the district (with a credit for the fair market 
value of Downtown Vision office space in the city-owned Ed Ball Building).  
 
We also believe it’s a very wise investment -- Downtown Vision leverages more 
than $3 in private funds from commercial property owners for every $1 
contributed by the City. We are all working towards the same goal.  
 
We hope the Downtown Investment Authority and the City of Jacksonville warmly 
receives this year’s request to continue to match the same formula calculation paid 

 
 

Chair 
Teresa Durand-Stuebben 

DIRTT 
 

Vice Chair 
Oliver Barakat 

CBRE 
 

Secretary 
Erik Higgins 

Gresham Smith  
 

Treasurer 
Numa Saisselin 
Florida Theatre 

 
Board Members 

 
Bill Adams 

Gunster Law Firm 

Zach Ashourian 
Ash Properties  

John Blount 
First Baptist Church 

Councilmember Lori Boyer 
Jacksonville City Council 

Stephen Crosby 
InvestJax 

Nathaniel P. Ford 
Jacksonville Transportation 

Authority 

Jan Hanak 
Regency Centers 

Brian Hughes 
Downtown Investment Authority  
 

Traci Jenks 
Cushman & Wakefield 

Asst. Chief Jimmy Judge 
Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office 

Vince McCormack 
Perdue Office Interiors 

Ryan McIntyre 
Vystar Credit Union 

Bill Prescott 
Heritage Capital Group 

John Ream 
The Connect Agency 

Dawn Southworth 
Omni Jacksonville Hotel 

Kerri Stewart 
JEA 

Chief Don Tuten 
Jacksonville Sheriff’s Office 

 
Aundra Wallace 

JaxUSA Partnership 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

gparola
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT A
RESOLUTION 2019-05-02



Downtown		
Vision,		
Incorporated	
 

 
	

214	N.	Hogan	Street	Suite	120,	Jacksonville,	FL	32202		
	|	904.634.0303|	Fax	904.634.8988	

by private property owners. We believe this additional support will be directly 
beneficial to the DIA in reaching the redevelopment goals for Downtown 
Jacksonville laid out in your CRA and BID Plans.  
 
Thank you for all your hard work for our City. With you working closely with Mayor 
Lenny Curry, City Council and DIA, Downtown Jacksonville is improving every day.  
 
We look forward to our continued partnership to help make Downtown 
Jacksonville a better place to live, work, visit and invest. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Jacob A. Gordon Esq.  
CEO 
 
Cc: Jim Bailey, Chairman, Downtown Investment Authority  
  



ATTACHMENT 1 - Updated for DIA	Board	Meeting,	May	15,	2019	

BUSINESS	IMPROVEMENT	DISTRICT	
(DOWNTOWN	VISION)	
JACKSONVILLE,	FLORIDA	

BUDGET	–	FISCAL	YEAR	2019/20	

ESTIMATED	REVENUES	 DVI	PROPOSED	

Assessed	Properties	(1)	 	 $	902,587	
City	of	Jacksonville	(2)	 	 $	461,884	
Other	Sources	 (3)	 $	275,421	
Total	Estimated	Revenues	 												$1,639,892	

Schedule	AD	

APPROPRIATIONS	
Clean,	Safe	
and	Attractive	
(4)	

Marketing,	
Promotions,	
Special	
Projects	(5)	

Business	&	
Stakeholder	
Support	(6)	

Management	
&	General	(7)	

Total	

Personnel	Services	 $93,046	 $238,499	 $140,450	 $55,934	 $527,929	

Operating	Expenses	 $688,332	 $250,360	 $139,058	 $34,214	 $1,111,963	

Total	Appropriations	 $781,377	 $488,859	 $279,507	 $90,148	 $1,639,892	

(1) Commercial	property	owners	in	DVI's	Downtown	district	pay	1.1	mils	of	their	property's	assessed	value	to	DVI.
(2) This	reflects	a	contribution	from	the	City	of	Jacksonville	equal	to	1.1	mils	of	the	value	of	the	City's	owned

property	(minus	a	rent	credit	of	$33,988	for	Downtown	Vision’s	office	space	in	the	Ed	Ball	Building.)
(3) This	represents	all	other	income	for	Downtown	Vision,	including	fee-for-service	contracts,	voluntary

contributions	from	exempt	organizations,	grants,	sponsorships	and	revenues	generated	from	special	events.
(4) These	contracted	services	include	a	team	of	Clean	&	Safe	Ambassadors,	a	supervising	project	manager,

uniforms,	supplies	and	equipment.	This	line	item	includes	50%	of	the	Director	of	District	Services	salary	plus
25%	of	administrative	budget.

(5) Includes	salaries	for	Vice	President	of	Marketing,	Communications	Manager,	Events	Manager	and	includes
25%	of	the	admin	budget.

(6) Includes	salary	for	Director	of	Experience,	50%	of	Director	of	District	Services	and	25%	of	admin	budget.
(7) This	represents	25%	of	the	admin	budget.	The	admin	budget	includes	the	CEO	and	Business	Administrator

positions.

Schedule	AE	



Updated for 
DIA Board Meeting
May 15, 2019

Downtown Vision, Inc. FY19/20 Budget 

BUDGETED 19/20
REVENUES
City of Jacksonville Request (1) 461,884$  
Private Commercial Properties - Assessed at 1.1 mils (2) 902,587$  
Contracted Services (3) 53,189$  
Voluntary Contributions, Sponsorships & Event Income (4) 221,752$  
Interest Income 480$  
TOTAL REVENUES $1,639,892

Clean, safe and 
Attractive (5)

Mktg, Promotions, 
special projects (6)

Business/ Stakeholder 
Support (7) Total Programs

Management & General 
(8)

EXPENDITURES
Salaries 69,624$  173,126$  104,620$  347,369$  42,876$  390,244$  
Employee Benefits 15,966$  46,832$  24,626$  87,423$  8,467$  95,890$  
Payroll Taxes/Workers' Comp 7,457$  18,542$  11,205$  37,203$  4,592$  41,795$  
  Total Salaries & Related Expenses 93,046$  238,499$  140,450$  471,995$  55,934$  527,929$  

Professional Fees and Contract Services 650,962$  35,448$  8,172$  694,582$  -$  694,582$  
Supplies/Equip. & Postage 5,291$  5,291$  5,291$  15,872$  5,291$  21,163$  
Telephone & Internet 2,085$  2,085$  2,085$  6,255$  2,085$  8,340$  
Computers 3,162$  3,162$  3,162$  9,486$  3,162$  12,648$  
Insurance 2,690$  2,690$  2,690$  8,070$  2,690$  10,760$  
Rent 3,153$  3,153$  3,153$  9,458$  3,153$  12,610$  
Accounting/Banking Services 6,275$  6,275$  6,275$  18,825$  6,275$  25,100$  
Meetings 1,500$  1,500$  1,500$  4,500$  1,500$  6,000$  
Travel/Conferences/Professional Development 7,545$  7,545$  7,545$  22,635$  7,545$  30,180$  
Memberships & Subscriptions 2,514$  2,514$  2,514$  7,541$  2,514$  10,054$  
Program Support 3,156$  180,698$  96,672$  280,526$  -$  280,526$  
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 781,377$  488,859$  279,507$  1,549,744$  90,148$  1,639,892$  
% of Total 48% 30% 17% 95% 5%
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES/Gap Fund $0

(4) Includes all others revenue such as grants, sponsorships and event revenue plus voluntary monetary contributions from exempt organizations such as JEA, First Baptist Church, JAX Chamber and Jesse Ball DuPont Fund. 

(6) Includes salaries for Vice President of Marketing, Communications Manager and Events Manager. Includes 25% of the admin budget.
(7) Includes salary for Experience Manager, 50% of Vice President of District Services, and 25% of admin budget. 
(8) Includes 25% of the admin budget. The admin budget includes the CEO and Business Administrator positions.

Downtown Vision FY19/20 Budget

(1) This amount reflects a full contribution from the City equal to 1.1 mils of the value of the City's owned property (minus a rent credit of $33,988 for Downtown Vision’s space in the Ed Ball Building.)
(2) Commercial property owners in DVI's Downtown district pay 1.1 mils of their property's assessed value to DVI.
(3) Includes contracts with General Services Administration (GSA) for federal courthouse and JTA for Skyway Ambassador services

(5) Includes Clean & Safe Ambassador team, a supervising operations director, uniforms, supplies and equipment and includes 50% of the Director of District Services salary plus 25% of admin budget.

ATTACHMENT 2



Updated for DIA Board Meeting
May 15, 2019

Downtown Vision
FY 18/19 vs. FY 19/20 

Attachment 3

Adopted 
FY18/19

Proposed 
FY19/20

Increase 
(Decrease) Notes

REVENUES
City of Jacksonville  $        456,775  $       461,884 $5,109 Represents the City's historic contribution to Downtown Vision since FY 2011
Private Commercial Properties (1.1 mils)  $        794,285  $       902,587 $108,302 Based on increase in assessed value of properties in the Downtown Improvement District 
Interest Income  $ 480  $ 480 $0 Anticipating continued low interest rates

Contracted Services  $          41,251  $         53,189 $11,938 
Includes payments from General Services Administration (GSA) for assistance around Federal Courthouse. 
Increase is new pilot project with JTA for Ambassadors at some Skyway stations. 

Other Sources  $        195,243  $       221,752 $26,509 

Includes all others revenue, including grants, sponsorships, event revenue and voluntary contributions from 
exempt organizations like JEA, First Baptist Church, JaxChamber, Police and Fire Pension Fund and Jesse Ball 
DuPont Fund. Increase due to increased revenue projected from annual DTJax Gala fundraiser. 

TOTAL REVENUES  $     1,488,034  $    1,639,892 $151,858 

EXPENDITURES
Salaries  $        342,807  $       390,244 $47,437 Increase due to one new staff member to oversee experience creation opportunities downtown
Employee Benefits  $          76,472  $         95,890 $19,418 Increase due to increased cost of health insurance, benefits and increased participation in 401k program. 
Payroll Taxes/Worker's Comp  $          36,061  $         41,795 $5,734 Increase due to increase in staffing costs
Total Salaries & Related Expenses  $        455,340  $       527,929 $72,589 

Professional Fees & Contract Services  $        679,291  $       694,582 $15,291 
Includes Ambassador contract and other costs such as Downtown Map/Guide, advertising, graphic design 
support, consulting, marketing support and printing reports, rack cards and marketing collateral.

Supplies, Printing & Postage  $          21,116  $         21,163 $47 Includes office supplies, stationary, copier, water cooler, postage meter, postage, bulk mail, UPS, courier fees
Telephone & Internet  $            8,340  $           8,340 $0 Includes phone lease, internet, local and long distance 
Computers  $            9,670  $         12,648 $2,978 Includes website management, software fees, email hosting and server maintenance
Insurance  $          13,160  $         10,760 ($2,400) Includes D&O, liability, property, theft and event insurance.
Rent  $          12,610  $         12,610 $0 Includes rent for offices in Ed Ball Building
Accounting, Banking Services & Payroll  $          25,868  $         25,100 ($768) Includes audit, payroll expenses, licenses and bank fees.
Meetings  $            6,000  $           6,000 $0 Includes Board meetings, committee meetings, stakeholder meetings and board retreat

Travel/Conferences/Professional Development  $          21,925  $         30,180 $8,255 

Includes conference expenses, lodging and travel expenses. Increase due to leadership initiatives/trainings 
including Urban Land Institute (ULI) and International Downtown Association (IDA) for CEO, Vice President of 
Marketing and Vice President of District Services

Memberships & Subscriptions  $            8,054  $         10,054 $2,000 

Also includes funding for membership in JaxChamber, Urban Land Institute and International Downtown 
Association and subscriptions for local papers and downtown-related journals such as Florida Times-Union and 
Jacksonville Business Journal

Program Support  $        226,660  $       280,526 $53,866 

Items include $145,000 for events and promotions such as Art Walk, Jazz Fest After Dark, Trick or Treat on the 
Street and DTJax Gala. Increase is related to Lively and Beautiful Sidewalks (LABS) initiative for more experience 
creation" in the public realm, including placemaking and beautification initatives

SUBTOTAL EXPENDITURES  $     1,488,034  $    1,639,892 $151,858 
Contingency  $  -  $  - $0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES  $     1,488,034  $    1,639,892 $151,858 

Variance  $  -  $ 0 $0 



Updated
For DIA Board Meeting
May 15, 2019

Downtown	Vision
History	of	Revenues

from	City	of	Jacksonville

Attachment 4

Fiscal	Year

Private	
Assessments	
(Budgeted)

Assessed	Value	of	City	
Property

City	Assessments	
(Due)	(1.1mils)

City	Assessments	
(Paid)

Millage	Rate	
Paid	by	COJ

Other	$	
(Note	1,	2)

Actual	City	
Contribution

Actual	
Millage

City	Assessment	
Diff	From	Millage	

(Note	3)
DVI	Adopted	Budget	
(Note	4)

FY	00/01 $778,970 $139,318,182 $153,250 $153,250 1.1 $0 $153,250 1.1 $0 $983,140
FY	01/02 $740,000 $130,045,455 $143,050 $143,050 1.1 $0 $143,050 1.1 $0 $956,478
FY	02/03 $734,000 $156,824,545 $172,507 $172,507 1.1 $0 $172,507 1.1 $0 $1,090,950
FY	03/04 $775,000 $174,746,364 $192,221 $192,221 1.1 $0 $192,221 1.1 $0 $1,116,746
FY	04/05 $781,948 $201,148,182 $221,263 $221,263 1.1 $0 $221,263 1.1 $0 $1,159,737
FY	05/06 $735,492 $214,837,273 $236,321 $236,321 1.1 $0 $236,321 1.1 $0 $1,159,737
FY	06/07 $786,284 $219,482,727 $241,431 $241,431 1.1 $0 $241,431 1.1 $0 $1,132,013
FY	07/08 $825,600 $208,860,909 $229,747 $229,747 1.1 $0 $229,747 1.1 $0 $1,150,521
FY	08/09 $892,413 $330,055,455 $363,061 $229,747 0.7 $0 $229,747 0.7 -$133,314 $1,212,356
FY	09/10 $950,000 $310,965,455 $342,062 $229,747 0.7 $39,587 $269,334 0.9 -$72,728 $1,253,886
FY	10/11	 $840,000 $295,737,273 $325,311 $229,747 0.8 $79,175 $308,922 1.0 -$16,389 $1,203,629
FY	11/12 $750,000 $270,883,636 $297,972 $229,747 0.8 $81,913 $311,660 1.2 $13,688 $1,183,568
FY	12/13 $686,000 $242,986,364 $267,285 $229,747 0.9 $81,913 $311,660 1.3 $44,375 $1,297,405
FY	13/14 $686,000 $250,729,355 $275,802 $229,747 0.9 $81,913 $311,660 1.2 $35,858 $1,246,962
FY	14/15 $686,000 $421,943,650 $464,000 $311,660 0.7 $0 $311,660 0.7 -$152,340 $1,242,083
FY	15/16 $720,000 $439,806,863 $481,498 $311,660 0.7 $0 $311,660 0.7 -$169,838 $1,323,699
FY	16/17 $733,108 $434,850,748 $478,336 $311,660 0.7 $33,988 $345,648 0.8 -$132,688 $1,188,133
FY	17/18 $769,627 $447,708,427 $492,479 $458,491 1.1 $33,988 $492,479 1.1 $0 $1,448,380
FY18/19	 $794,285 $446,148,182 $490,763 $456,775 1.1 $33,988 $490,763 1.1 $0 $1,488,034
FY19/20	(proposed) $902,587 $450,792,727 $495,872 $461,884 1.1 $33,988 $495,872 1.1 $0 $1,639,892
NOTES

3. From	FY	08/09	through	FY	16/17,	the	City	of	Jacksonville	underpaid	its	1.1	mil	assessment	by	a	total	of	$583,376.

1. The	"Other	$"	column	from	FY	09/10	to	FY	13/14	reflects	a	grant	from	City	of	Jacksonville	for	additional	ambassadors.

2. The	"Other	$"	column	for	FY	16/17	to	FY	17/18,	reflects	a	rental	credit	for	Downtown	Vision's	lower-than-market	rent	in	the	Ed	Ball	Building	as	requested	by	City	Council	in	FY	16/17.

4. During	the	past	15	years,	Downtown	Vision,	Inc.	leverages	over	$3	in	private	assessments	for	every	$1	paid	by	the	City	of	Jacksonville.



 

 
 

Downtown Investment Authority 
City Hall at St. James Building,  

117 W. Duval Street, First Floor, Lynwood Roberts Room    
Jacksonville, FL. 32202  

Wednesday, May 15, 2019 – 1:00 p.m.  
 

  
Downtown Investment Authority   

 
  MEETING MINUTES  
 
Board Members Present:   Craig Gibbs, Esq., Vice Chairman; Ron Moody, Secretary; Oliver 
Barakat; Todd Froats; Braxton Gillam, Dane Grey, Marc Padgett and Carol Worsham  
 
Board Members Absent:  Jim Bailey, Chairman  
 
Mayor’s Staff:   Dr. Johnny Gaffney, Mayor’s Office, Boards and Commission Liaison   
 
DIA Staff:  Brian Hughes, Office of the Mayor Chief of Staff and Interim Chief Executive Officer; 
Guy Parola, Operations Manager; and Karen Underwood-Eiland, Executive Assistant. 
 
City Staff: Diane Moser, Director of Employee Services 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.   
 
Meeting Convened: 1:00 p.m.  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Vice Chairman Craig Gibbs called the DIA meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.  
 
II. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
A.  CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CANDIDATE INTERVIEWS 
 
Interim CEO Hughes stated that the candidates were scheduled in order to deal with their travel 
arrangements.  Each candidate has a 5 to 10 minutes introduction and the rest of the time is for 
member’s questions and answers. Scoring sheets will be given to Diane Moser, Employees Services 
and she will come back to report the ranking order based on the score sheets.  

 
i. Candidate A – Gregory Flisram, Senior Vice President with Economic Development 

Corporation of Kansas City, Missouri 
 

ii. Candidate B – Kevin Hanna, President/CEO Donaldson Development Group LLC. 
 

iii. Candidate C – Lori Boyer, Council Member District 5 
 
Diane Moser, Employee Services provided the ranking of the score sheets to Chairman Gibbs.  
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, May 15, 2019  
Page 2 of 3  

Lori Boyer was selected to lead the Downtown Investment Authority and will enter a 30-to 60-day 
contract negotiation with the DIA Board.  She is term limited and will leave the City Council on 
June 30, replacing inter CEO Brian Hughes.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER BARAKAT AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER MOODY APPROVING LORI BOYER AS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE 
DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0. 
 
 
B. APPROVAL OF THE APRIL 17, 2019 DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT 

AUTHORITY  MINUTES 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER MOODY APPROVING THE APRIL 17, 2019 DIA MEETING MINUTES 

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.  
 
 
C.          RESOLUTION 2019-05-01:  DIA ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET  
 

RESOLUTION 2019-05-01 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE THE ATTACHED ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATIONAL 
BUDGET AS PART OF THE CITY’S OVERALL BUDGET APPROVAL; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Mr. Parola brought for the Resolution 2019-05-01.  He discussed unfilled positions within the 
department.  
 
Interim CEO Hughes reported that a serious effort is being prepared toward the year ahead. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER PADGETT AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER FROATS APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-05-01  
 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.  
 
 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
Regular Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, May 15, 2019  
Page 3 of 3  

D. RESOLUTION 2019-05-02:  DOWNTOWN VISION, INC. BUDGET 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-05-02 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE THE CITY’S FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION TO DOWNTOWN 
VISION, INC. (“DVI”) AS IDENTIFIED IN DVI’S 2019-2020 BUDGET; 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE JACKSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVE DVI’S 2019-2020 ANNUAL BUDGET INCLUDED AS 
ATTACHMENT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
Jake Gordon Downtown Vision CEO provided a handout and was present to answer any questions.  
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY BOARD MEMBER GREY AND SECONDED BY BOARD 
MEMBER PADGETT APPROVING RESOLUTION 2019-05-02. 
 
THE MOTION PASSED 7-0-1 (Board Member Barakat Abstained)  
 
 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 
comments of this meeting, a transcript is available upon request.  Please contact Karen 

Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302, 
or by email at karenu@coj.net. 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-03 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

(THE “DIA”) AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF DUVAL COUNTY TAX 

PARCEL 073794 0100 (“SITE”) TO RYAN COMPANIES US, INC., IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH THEIR FINANCIAL OFFER OF APRIL 9, 2019 

OF TWO MILLION SIX HUNDRED THOUSAND AND ZERO DOLLARS 

($2,600,000.00); INSTRUCTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 

TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO 

EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the North 

Bank CRA, to which a Community Redevelopment Plan was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City owns an approximately 1.52-acre parcel of undeveloped real 

property identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Number 073794 0100 (“Site”); and  

WHEREAS, the DIA received an unsolicited offer to purchase the Site from Ryan 

Companies US, Inc., the general terms of which are attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 

WHEREAS, in response to the aforementioned unsolicited offer, the DIA adopted 

Resolution 2019-04-01, instructing its Chief Executive Officer to have issued a 30-day notice for 

the solicitation of proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, Section 

122.434(a), Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, and Section 122.434(b), Jacksonville Code of 

Ordinances; and 

 

WHEREAS, the 30-day notice period has been satisfied, resulting in no further 

proposals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that this Resolution is consistent with and in furtherance of 

the North Bank and Southside Community Redevelopment Area Plans, and more specifically 

with the following Redevelopment Goal: and  

 

Redevelopment Goal No. 1  

Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for business, history, culture, 

education, and entertainment, NOW THEREFORE 

 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]

 

 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-03 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Downtown Investment Authority: 

 

Section 1. The DIA affirms that the aforementioned recitals are true and correct. 

 

Section 2.   The DIA approves the sale of the Site to Ryan Companies US, Inc., in 

accordance with their financial offer of April 9, 2019 of two million six hundred thousand and 

zero dollars ($2,600,000) for fee simple title of the Site. 

 

Section 3.  The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer to take all necessary action to 

effectuate the purpose of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. The Effective Date of this Resolution is the date upon execution of this 

Resolution by the Chair of the Downtown Investment Authority. 

 

 

 

WITNESS:              DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

 

           

   Jim Bailey, Chairman   Date 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor:   Opposed:    Abstained:    



ADAMS  ST

MONROE  ST

DUVAL  ST

CLAY  ST

JULIA  ST

PEARL  ST

LAURA  ST

FORSYTH  ST

HOGAN  ST

CHURCH  ST

HOUSTON  ST

ºNot To Scale
May 15, 2019

LEGEND

LOCATION MAP
RESOLUTION 2019-05-03

SITE
TAX PARCELS

















































 

 

APPRAISAL 

 



































































































 

 

RESOLUTION 2019-04-01 







 Downtown Investment Authority 

117 West Duval St., Ste. 310 ▪ Jacksonville, FL 32202 ▪ (904) 630-3492  ▪ www.jaxdowntowninvestment.org 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  The Downtown Investment Authority Governing Board 

THROUGH: Jim Bailey, Chair 

FROM:  Todd Froats, Chair, DIA Finance & Budget Committee 

Brian Hughes, Mayor’s Chief of Staff, Interim DIA Chief Executive Officer 

RE:  Resolution 2019-05-04: DIA 2019-2020 Tax Increment District Budgets 

DATE:  May 15, 2019 

              

Attached please find Resolution 2019-05-04, adopting DIA’s FY 2019-2020 Tax Increment District 
Budgets. The budgets, as shown, were adopted by the Finance and Budget Committee on April 24th. The 
following summarizes the three (3) Tax Increment District Budgets: 
 
Budgets 
   FY 2018-2019  FY 2019-2020 
Downtown East  $5,692,310  $3,964,742* 
Northwest  $5,210,436  $5,210,436** 
Southside  $4,256,079  $4,256,079** 
*The Carling bond payment by DIA of $2,174,385 ends FY 2018-2019. The Downtown East TID borrowed 
from the Northwest TID to cover a portion of this debt service. This Northwest TID transfer was 
accounted for as Revenue for the east. With this debt no longer an expense, there is a corresponding 
decrease in revenue. 
**Assumed flat for budgeting purposes. Actual TID Revenue to be brought before the DIA Board in a 
revised budget in July or August. 
 
Solvent 
All three (3) Tax Increment Districts are projected to have revenues in excess of their obligations. 
Therefore, there will be no need to (a) borrow from the general fund to cover obligations, or (b) transfer 
funds from one Tax Increment District to another. 
 
Marketing and Promotions 
The budget funds an increased focus on DIA messaging and outreach to the development and 
investment community, and is companion to the proposed Communications Coordinator position within 
the Administrative Budget. This is not a duplicative effort of Downtown Vision Inc., as we have different 
intended audiences.   
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-04 MEMORANDUM 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 

 

 

Parks 
As Downtown develops further with residential, a need for a focused strategy on creating and investing 
in our Downtown parks is warranted. Therefore, the funding of a Downtown Parks Master Plan is 
proposed. 
 

Capital Projects & Loans 
The proposed budgets have increased funding for capital projects, waterfront activation and 
loans.   
 
Attachments:  Resolution 2019-05-04 
  Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Tax Increment  Budgets 
 

 
 
Note: In August, Fiscal Year 2018-2019 and Fiscal Year 2019-2020 budgets are 
brought back to the Board, reflective of actual and project ad valorem tax 
revenues and REV Grant expenses. 
 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-04 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AS 

THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOMENT AGENCY FOR THE NORTH 

BANK AND SOUTHSIDE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AREAS 

ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 BUDGETS FOR THE 

DOWNTOWN EAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHSIDE TAX 

INCREMENT DISTRICTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  

  

WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is the Community 

Redevelopment Agency for the North Bank and Southside Community Redevelopment Areas 

pursuant to Ordinance 2012-0364; and 

 

 WHEREAS, as the Community Redevelopment Agency, the DIA is responsible for 

developing, approving and implementing budgets for the three Tax Increment Districts that 

within the North Bank and South Side Community Redevelopment Areas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Finance and Budget Committee of DIA held a public meeting on April 

24, 2019, where they unanimously voted to approve the Downtown East, Northwest and 

Southside Tax Increment District Budgets, included hereto as Attachments ‘A’, ‘B’ and ‘C’, 

respectively; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to promote economic development, private capital investment and 

otherwise fulfill the DIA’s purposes, the attached budgets for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 are to be 

submitted by the DIA’s Chief Executive Officer for consideration by the Mayor’s Budget Review 

Committee and the Jacksonville City Council,   NOW THEREFORE 

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the DIA: 

 

Section 1. The Downtown East Tax Increment District budget for Fiscal Year 2019-

2020 included hereto as Attachment ‘A’ is hereby adopted by the DIA. 

 

Section 2.  The Northwest Tax Increment District budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

included hereto as Attachment ‘B’ is hereby adopted by the DIA. 

 

Section 3. The Southside Tax Increment District budget for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

included hereto as Attachment ‘C’ is hereby adopted by the DIA. 

 

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the Chair 

of the DIA Board. 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-04 

PAGE 2 OF 2 

WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

 

 

______________________            

James Bailey, Chairman  Date 

 

 

 

 

 

VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 

 

 

 

 

 

 



DOWNTOWN EAST TID BUDGET
FY 19‐20

MAY 15, 2015

Line Downtown East TID (SF 181)  FY19 Budget  FY20 Proposed Expiration

1
2 Revenue 

3 31101 Ad Valorem Taxes $2,863,008 $2,863,008 2044

4 Misc. Revenue

5 JXSF181 36907 Debt Repayment (Lynch / 11E) Principle & Interest $595,247 $595,247 2023

6 JXSF181 36968 Debt Repayment (Carling Loan) Principle & Interest $506,487 $506,487 2023

7 Transfers From Other Funds

8 38191 Transfer from NW TID (SF183) $1,727,568 $0

9 38192 Transfers From General Fund (Loan) $0 $0

10 38901 Transfers from Fund Balance $0 $0

11 Total Revenues  $5,692,310 $3,964,742

12
13 Expenditures 

14 Professional Services and Contractual Obligations

15 3109 (NEW) Website Development $0 $25,000

16 (NEW) 'Marketing and Promotions $0 $50,000

17
18 Grants , Aids and Other Contributions

19 DIAD181MPS 04939  MPS Arena & Sports Complex  $2,000,000 $2,000,000 2034

20 Comm. Revitalization Program ‐ GS&P $5,000 $5,000 2020

21 JXSF181 04939 Kraft Food REV Grant (Maxwell House) $95,000 $0

22 DIAD181AREP 36907 Retail Enhancement Program $340,330 $132,242

23 DIAD181WA 04939 (NEW) Northbank Waterfront Activation Projects $0 $500,000

24 JXSF181 04939 (NEW) Northbank Loans $0 $375,000

25 Sub Total $2,440,330 $3,087,242

26
27 Interfund and Intrafund Transfers

28 09101 Interest ‐ Carling Bonds $0 $0

29 09101B Principal ‐ Carling Bonds $2,174,385 $0

30 09191B Repayment of General Fund Loans $200,095 $0

31 Loan Payment to the Self Insurance Fund (Lynch Bldg.) $800,000 $800,000 2033

32 09191B To General Fund ‐ GSD $2,500 $2,500

33 09191 To Community Development Subfund (1A1) $75,000 $75,000 2022

34
35 09906 Cash Carryover $0 $0

36 Total Interfund and Intrafund Transfers $3,251,980 $877,500

37
38 Total Transfer Out $5,692,310 $3,964,742

39
40 Remaining Funds $0 $0

41
42 Total Expenditures $5,692,310 $3,964,742



NORTHWEST TID BUDGET
FY 19‐20

MAY 15, 2019

Line North West TID (SF 183)  FY19 Budget  FY20 Proposed  Expires

1

2 Revenue  2041

3 31101 Ad Valorem Taxes $5,210,436 $5,210,436

4 38901 Transfers from Fund Balance $0 $0

5 38191 Interfund Transfers In $0 $0

6 38192 Intrafund Transfer In $0 $0

7 Total Revenues  $5,210,436 $5,210,436

8

9 Expenditures 

10 Other Operating Expenses

11 03109 Professional Services $0 $0

12 (NEW) Downtown Parks Master Plan $0 $200,000

13 Website Development $0 $26,782

14 Total Other Operating Expenses $0 $0

15

16 (NEW) 'Marketing and Promotions $0 $50,000

17 Grants, Aids and Contributions

18 DIAD183MPS 04939 MPS Urban Core Garage (Courthouse) $2,200,000 $2,200,000 2034

19 JTA /Fidelity Parking Lease $13,494 $13,494 Unknown

20 JXSF183 04939 Hall Mark REV Grant (220 Riverside) $360,000 $372,960 2036

21 JXSF183 04939 Pope & Land REV Grant (Brooklyn Riverside Apts.) $325,000 $336,700 2036

22 JXSF183 04939 Lofts at Jefferson Station REV Grant $0 $158,000 2035

23 DIAD183REP 09995 Expanded REP program $581,874 $175,000

24 (NEW) Northbank Capital Projects $0 $1,100,000

25 JXSF183 04939 (NEW) Northbank Loans $0 $575,000

26 Interfund and Intrafund Transfers 

27 09101 Interest ‐ Bonds $0 $0

28 09101B Principal ‐ Bonds $0 $0

29 09191 Interfund Transfer Out

30              To General Fund ‐ GSD $2,500 $2,500

31 09192 Intrafund Transfer Out

32              To Downtown East TID (SF 181)) $1,727,568 $0

33 Total Interfund and Intrafund Transfers $1,730,068 $2,500

34

35 09906 Cash Carryover $0 $0

36 Total Transfer Out $5,210,436 $5,210,436

37

38 Remaining Funds $0 $0

39

40 Total Expenditures $5,210,436 $5,210,436



SOUTHSIDE TID BUDGET
FY 19‐20

MAY 15, 2019

Line South Side TID  (SF 182) FY19   Budget  FY 20 Proposed Expiration

1

2 Revenue 

3 31101 Ad Valorem Taxes $4,256,079 $4,256,079 2040

4 38901 Transfers from Fund Balance $0 $0

5 36621 Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0

6 Total Revenues  $4,256,079 $4,256,079

7

8 Expenditures 

9 03109 Professional Services

10 Total  Professional and Contractual Services $0 $0

11 Other Operating Expenses

12 04904 Trust Fund Authorized Expenditures $0 $0

13 04939 Misc. Non‐Departmental Expenditures $0 $0

14

15 Debt Service

16 091011 Debt Service Transfer out ‐ Interest $178,004 $320,450 2032

17 Total    $178,004 $320,450

18

19 Grants, Aids and Contributions

20 Transfers to Other Funds

21 JXSF182    04939 Pennisula REV Grant $625,000 $647,500 2027

22 JXSF182    04939 Strand Rev Grant $425,000 $440,300 2027

23 JXSF182    04939 Sunguard REV Grant $8,000 $8,288 2025

24 JXSF182    04939 Home Street REV Grant $0 $145,000 2035

25 JXSF182    04939 One Call CRP $100,000 $100,000 2027

26 SB Riverwalk Wayfaring Signage $100,000 $0

27 DIAD182WA Waterfront Activation  $216,467 $166,111

28 DIAD182JSSG JEA SSGS Public Infrastructure Improvements $1,750,000 $2,190,930

29 DIAD182REP Retail Enhancement Program $178,000 $0

30 DICP32UTID Southside TID Capital Projects $0 $235,000

31

32 Total Transfers to Other Funds $3,402,467 $3,933,129

33 09191

34 To General Fund ‐ GSD‐ Admin (includes Audit) $425,608 $2,500

35 To General Fund ‐ GSD $0 $0

36 To TIF Capital Fund ‐ Southbank Parking (32U) $250,000 $0

37 To TIF Capital Fund ‐ Riverplace Road Diet (32U) $0 $0

38 Total Interfund Transfers $675,608 $2,500

39

40 09906 Cash Carryover $0

41 Total Transfer out $4,256,079 $4,256,079

42

43 Remaining Funds $0 $0

44

45 Total Expenditures $4,256,079 $4,256,079



 

RESOLUTION 2019-05-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (THE “DIA”) 
INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO ISSUE A 30-DAYS 
NOTICE OF SOLICITATION FOR THE DISPOSITION OF AN APPROXIMATELY 
3.45 ACRES OF CITY-OWNED REAL PROPERTY WITHIN THE LAVILLA 
DISTRICT OF DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE, HAVING DUVAL COUNTY TAX 
PARCEL NUMBERS 074846 0000, 07844 0000, 074843 0000, 074847 0000, THE 
WESTERN ½ OF 074828 0005, 074834 0000, 074830 0000, AND 074832 0000 (“SITE”); 
INSTRUCTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO TAKE ALL NECESSARY 
ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF 
THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
  

WHEREAS, the City owns approximately 3.45 acres parcel of undeveloped real 
property identified by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers 074846 0000, 07844 0000, 074843 
0000, 074847 0000, the Western ½ of 074828 0005, 074834 0000, 074830 0000, and 074832 
0000. 

 
WHEREAS, the DIA received an unsolicited offer to purchase the Site from Vestcor 

Companies, Inc., the general terms of which are attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and 
 
WHEREAS, Vestcor Companies, Inc., proposes to construct seventy (70) units of single-

family townhomes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the DIA commissioned a LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy, 

that, in part, calls for DIA to “Introduce fee-simple products in the form of townhomes and other 
attached unit types in order to offer greater [home] ownership opportunities”; and    

 
WHEREAS,  the Site is located within the North Bank Downtown Community 

Redevelopment Area (“North Bank CRA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, The Northbank CRA Redevelopment Goal 2 calls for DIA to “Increase 

rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown, targeting key demographic groups seeking a 
more urban lifestyle.”; and 

 
WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the North 

Bank CRA, to which a Community Redevelopment Plan was adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day notice for the solicitation of 
proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, Section 122.434(a), Jacksonville 
Code of Ordinances, and Section 122.434(b), Jacksonville Code of Ordinances, will be issued,  
NOW THERFORE 

 



RESOLUTION 2019-05-05 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 
 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   
 

Section 2. The DIA finds that the proposed development plan is consistent with and 
in furtherance of the LaVilla Neighborhood Development Strategy and the Northbank CRA Plan. 

 
Section 3.  The DIA instructs its Chief Executive Officer take all necessary action 

necessary to effectuate the Solicitation for disposition of the Site. 
 

Section 4. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the 
Chair of the DIA Board. 
 
 
 
WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
______________________        May 15, 2019 

Craig Gibbs, Vice Chairman  Date 
 
 
 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 
 
 
 



One Independent Drive 
Suite 1200 
Jacksonville, Aoridn 32202 

DMH&D 
- DRIVER· MCAfEE -
HAWTHORNE· DI EBE NOW 

May 8, 2019 

Brian Hughes, CEO 
Downtown Investment Authority 
117 West Duval Street, Suite 310 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

P (904) 301.1269 
F (904) 301.1279 

www.drivermcafec.com 

Re: Proposal to Purchase City-Owned Property at 1128 West Adams Street (RE# 074846 
0000), I 062 West Adams Street (RE# 074844 0000), I 050 West Adams Street (RE# 
074843 0000), 0 Johnson Street (RE# 07484 7 0000), 0 Lee Street (a portion of RE# 
074828 0005), I 005 West Forsyth Street (RE# 074828 0005), 0 Johnson Street (RE# 
074830 0000), and 125 Johnson Street (RE# 074834 0000) (collectively, the 
"Property") 

Mr. Hughes: 

On behalf of our client, Vestcor Companies, Inc., a Florida corporation ("Vestcor"), we have been 
authorized to submit this proposal to the Downtown Investment Authority ("DIA") in its capacity as 
the Downtown Community Redevelopment Agency ("CRA"). Vestcor proposes to purchase the City­
owned Property in the LaVilla District within the North Bank Downtown Redevelopment Area 
pursuant to Section 163.380, Florida Statutes, and Section 122.434, City of Jacksonville Code of 
Ordinances (the "Proposal"). 

Proposed Project 

The Property is located in the La Villa Catalyst Site ("La Villa") of the Downtown Overlay. The vision 
for this area includes an urban and dense metropolitan center with mixed-income housing, retail and 
office development with a direct connection to the proposed regional transportation hub. The area is 
intended to include a mix of urban housing such as loft apartment and walk-ups to sustain the 
neighborhood. The City's BID Plan found that the optimal residential future of La Villa is a family­
oriented mixed-income neighborhood of low-to-moderate-density housing, including a mix of single 
family habitat-type homes and other financially-assisted attached and multifamily housing, both for­
sale and for-rent. 

In furtherance of these objectives and in keeping with the theme of La Villa, Vestcor proposes to 
develop the Property as a new residential project including approximately seventy townhome units (the 
"LaVilla Townhomes"). The LaVilla Townhomes will be the area' s first new market rate project 
designed to compliment the existing affordable and workforce housing projects in the area including 
the Lofts at La Villa, Lofts at Jefferson Station, and Lofts at Monroe. The average sa les price of each 
townhome is expected to be Two Hundred Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($250,000). 



Downton Investment Authority 
May 8, 2019 
Page 2 

Consistency with CRA Plan 

The La Villa Townhomes further each of the established redevelopment goals of the Downtown CRA 
Plan. 

Redevelopment Goal No. I: Reinforce Downtown as the City's unique epicenter for business. history. 
culture, education. and entertainment. The LaVilla Townhomes will increase opportunities for 
Downtown employment throughout the development process and thereafter in ongoing operation of 
the townhomes. The LaVilla Townhomes will increase residential opportunities by adding to the 
inventory of available housing units and satisfy one benchmark of success through an increased number 
of residents in the area. Finally, the La Villa Townhomes will replace an unattractive vacant lot with a 
modern residential development. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing Downtown. targeting key 
demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle. While new affordable and workforce housing 
projects have flourished in La Villa, these projects have not provided residents with an opportunity for 
home ownership. The La Villa Townhomes will provide one of the first new market rate, owner­
occupied projects in LaVilla. Including this product will fill a gap in the housing market and satisfy 
the stated objective of providing a mix of for-sale and for-rent single and multifamily housing. Adding 
density to La Villa further supports the establishment of neighborhood retail which is essential to the 
support of Downtown residents. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 3: Simplify the approval process for Downtown development and improve 
departmental and agency coordination. The LaVilla Townhomes satisfy the strategic objective of 
providing publicly-owned land and building space for private development which will support and 
strengthen Downtown's commercial and residential base. Moreover, Vestcor is a proven partner for 
satisfying key residential initiatives in the La Villa neighborhood. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 4: Improve walkability/bike-ability and connectivity to adjacent 
neighborhoods and the St. Johns River while creating highly walkable nodes. The La Villa Townhomes 
support achievement of benchmarks for this redevelopment goal including increasing real estate value, 
providing private capital investment, and increasing the number of observable pedestrians in La Villa 
which should have the added effect of increasing desirable street activity during and outside of business 
hours. By encouraging an active street life beyond traditional daylight business hours, the LaVilla 
Townhomes will create an environment of growth for other restaurant, retail and entertainment 
business Downtown. Finally, the La Villa Townhomes will reinforce residential development near the 
new transportation hub, which promotes walkability. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 5: Establish a waterfront design framework to ensure a unique experience 
and sense of place. The La Villa Townhomes will add more residents to La Villa, which will increase 
the observed number of pedestrians, desirable street activity, and utilization of public open spaces and 
amenities such as the Riverwalk. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 6: Maintain a clean and safe 24-7 Downtown for residents. workers. and 
visitors. The La Villa Townhomes will improve the pedestrian experience at street level by eliminating 
an unsightly vacant lot and replacing it with a building utilizing urban design principles including 



Downton Investment Authority 
May 8, 2019 
Page 3 

appropriate urban streetscape and lighting elements. The La Villa Townhomes will promote a greater 
sense of activity and public safety by bringing residents and visitors to the area, which, in turn, will 
support and attract additional commercial, service, residential and transportation uses. 

Redevelopment Goal No. 7: Use planning and economic development policies to promote design for 
healthy living. The LaVilla Townhomes add a much-needed market-rate residential option to the 
La Villa neighborhood. The addition of residential development in close proximity to a variety of 
public transportation options will improve the walk score of the area. The streetscape improvements 
that activate the block and improve its sense of safety at all hours and will make walkability and 
bikeability a reality rather than an aspirational goal. 

Vcstcor Experience and Ability to Complete La Villa Townhomes 

The LaVilla Townhomes will be constructed by Vestcor, a local company founded in 1983. Since 
formation, Vestcor has grown to become one of Florida's largest developers with more than eighty 
partnerships investing in raw land, existing apartments, new multifamily developments, 
condominiums, student communities and retirement communities. In particular, Vestcor has an 
established record of successful Downtown development including 11 East Forsyth and the Carling 
(both market rate projects), the Lofts at LaVilla (affordable housing), Lofts at Monroe (affordable 
housing), and Lofts at Jefferson Station (mix of affordable and workforce housing). Additional details 
regarding Vestcor and its history of Downtown development are included as Appendix I. 

Vestcor will finance the project through a traditional bank lender. A letter ofreference from two banks 
expressing their interest in the La Villa Townhomes and history with Vestcor is included as Appendix 
2. Further inquiries may be directed to each of the contacts listed on the letters in Appendix 2. 

Financial Offer 

Vestcor offers One Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($100.00) for fee simple title to the Property, payable 
at closing, pursuant to the terms and conditions detailed in the Term Sheet attached as Appendix 3. 

On behalf of the Vestcor we appreciate the opportunity to provide this Proposal to develop the La Villa 
Townhomes. Should you have any additional questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate 
to call me at (904) 301-1269 or Cyndy Trimmer at (904) 807-0185. 

cc: Guy Parola, DIA 
Vestcor Companies, Inc. 

Sin~ 

teven Diebenow 



Agent Authorization 

You are hereby advised that Clarence S. Moore, as President of The Vestcor Companies, Inc., a Florida 
corporation, hereby submits the attached Proposal and authorizes and empowers Driver, McAfee, 
Hawthorne & Diebenow, PLLC, to act as agent in connection with such Proposal and provides 
authorization to Driver, McAfce, Hawthorne & Diebcnow, PLLC, to file such applications, papers, 
documents, request and other matters necessary in connection with such Proposal. 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF DUVAL 

a Florida c 

Sworn and subscribed before me this gc.M... day of May, 2019, by Clarence S. Moore, as 
President of The Vestcor Companies, Inc., a Florida corporation, who is ,;;/personally known to me or 

n has produced _________ as idcntificati~~f..CC.tl ,;{; ltf.~ 
(Notary Signature) 

:~~•~- REBECCA l WHITE 
{f'llt~ MY COMMISSION# FF97'3M 

~ EXPIRES March 23, 2020 
(401tai-om Flol1d1 .call . 



APPENDIX 1 

Vestcor Companies, Inc. 



Vi ICOR. 
Company Overview 

• 36 Year Track Record 
• Developed/Acquired over 14,800 multifamily rental units 
• Developed and sold 5 condominium complexes 
• Currently own 22 communities with over 3,500 rental units 
• Currently has 4 communities with 708 units under construction 
• Sold 44 communities consisting of 11,326 units 

Downtown Jacksonville Living 

11 East Forsyth The Carling Lofts at LaVilla 

• 127 Units • 100 Units • 130 Units 

• Historical renovation • Historical renovation • Completed in 2017 

• Completed in 2003 • Completed in 2005 

lofts at Monroe Lofts at Jefferson Station 

• 108 Units • 133 Units 

• Completed in 2018 • Will be complete in 2019 



APPENDIX2 

Letter of Ref ere nee 



\11f//f6,, 
~ 

SUN'IRUST 

May 8, 2019 

Steve Moore 
The Vestcor Companies 
3030 Hartley Road, Suite 310 
Jacksonville, Fl 32257 

Re: LaVilla Townhomes 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Lesli Carroll 
Senior Vice President 

SunTrust Bank 
200 S. Orange Blvd 
7th Floor 
Orlando, FL 32801 
Tel 407.237.1112 
resli carroll@suntruslcom 

SunTrust Bank is a significant lender and investor in real estate developments in the United States. We have 
substantial experience and success in providing creative and responsive financing solutions for a variety of 
commercial and residential real estate projects. 

The Vestcor Companies has been a client of SunTrust Bank since 2015 and they have accomplished an 
extensive and very positive track record in the development of real estate projects. SunTrust has financed the 
acquisition and construction of a number of Vestcor Developments and all projects were completed on time, 

within budget, and met all covenant requirements for stabilization with no problems. Since their first closing 
with SunTrust in 2015, Vestcor has continued to be a model client and exceeds their proforma projections. 

Based on our positive history with The Vestcor Companies, SunTrust would be interested in the opportunity to 
provide financing for the LaVilla Townhomes. 

Sincerely, 

Lesli Carroll 
Senior Vice President 

SunTrust Community Capital 



II ' 
Branch Banking and Trust Company 

Mays, 2019 

Downtown Investment Authority 
117 West Duval Street, Suite 310 
Jacksonville, FL 32202 

RE: Vestcor- LaVilla Townhomes 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Commercial Real Estate 

200 W. Foisyth Street 
Ste. 510 
Jacksonville, Fl 32202 

It is my understanding that Vestcor is proposing to purchase city owned property(s) in the LaVilla 

neighborhood, with the Intent to develop 70 residential townhomes. BB&T has had a longstanding 

business relationship with Vestcor and its affiliates and consider it to be a valued client. Our current 

lending relationship consists of multiple loans on development projects, with a total commitment 

amount in the mid-eight figure range. 

BB&T would welcome the opportunity to provide financings for the La Villa project, subject to our 

standard underwriting and approval process. Please give me a call if I can answer any questions or 

provide any additional Information at (904)361-5232. 

Commercial Real Estate Banking 



APPENDIX3 

Letter of Intent 



VESTCOR COMPANIES, INC. 

TERM SHEET 

May _ ,2019 

This Term Sheet sets out the terms whereby the City of Jacksonville ("City") would grant certain 
real property to Vestcor Companies, Inc. ("Vestcor" and, together with City, the "Parties") in 
exchange for Vestcor developing the Project (defined below). This indicative Term Sheet is not 
intended to be legally binding on either party or to impose any legal obligations on either party, 
including any obligation of continued negotiation. Such binding obligations shall arise, only 
pursuant to a definitive Purchase and Sale Agreement and such other agreements as the Parties may 
execute and deliver in connection with such investment (collectively, the "Definitive Agreement"), 
if, and when executed by the Parties. 

Proposed 
Transaction: 

Closing: 

Transaction 
Documents: 

At the Closing, Vestcor would acquire, and City would sell for $100, all 
right, title and interest in and to certain real property owned by City and 
located in downtown Jacksonville, described as follows: 

(i) approximately 1.5 blocks between Stuart Street & Lee Street and 
Houston Street & Adams Street; and (ii) 1 block between Johnson Street 
& Lee Street and Forsyth Street & Houston Street (collectively, the 
"Property"), as more particularly shown on Exhibit A. 

The Property would be acquired free and clear of all liens, 
encumbrances, claims or other debts of any nature except for any 
security interest created in the transaction. As additional consideration 
for the Property, Vestcor would commit to build approximately seventy 
(70) townhome units as shown on Exhibit B attached hereto (the 
"Project"). The average sales price of each townhome unit is expected 
to be $250,000. As additional consideration for the Property, Vestcor 
agrees to pay the City 50% of the sales price of any townhome unit in 
excess of $250,000, 

The Parties would attempt to negotiate and execute the Definitive 
Agreement by July 1, 2019. Closing would occur within ten (10) days 
after satisfaction of all conditions to Closing in the Definitive 
Agreement ( other than conditions to be satisfied at Closing), but in no 
event shall Closing occur later than December 31, 2019 (the "Closing 
Date"). Vestcor shall break ground on the Project no later than nine (9) 
months following the execution of the Definitive Agreement. 

The Definitive Agreement will be a purchase and sale agreement and 
will contain customary representations and warranties for a transaction 



Conditions to 
Closing: 

Certain Additional 
Terms: 

of this size and nature. In particular, City will represent, warrant and 
covenant to Vestcor that on the Closing Date all Property is owned by 
City free and clear, that the Property is properly zoned for the Project. 

The Closing will be subject to certain conditions to be set forth in the 
Definitive Agreement, including: 

(a) Due Diligence. Vestcor and its attorneys, consultants, 
accountants, lenders and other representatives and agents shall 
have satisfactorily completed their due diligence investigation 
of the Property. Between the date of this Term Sheet and the 
Closing, these representatives shall be given reasonable access 
to the Property, including any documentation associated with the 
Property. None of such information shall be used by such 
persons other than for evaluation of the Property for purposes of 
the Transaction, and such information shall be held in 
confidence. City agrees to cooperate fully with Vestcor's 
representatives and agents and to make themselves available to 
the extent necessary to complete the due diligence process and 
the closing of the Transaction. 

(b) Absence o(Adverse Change. There shall have been no material 
adverse change in the condition of the Property or prospects of 
the Project since the date of execution of the Definitive 
Agreement. 

(c) Third Party Approvals. The Transaction shall have been 
approved by all third parties from whom such approval is 
required. 

(d) City Approvals. The Transaction shall have been approved by 
City. 

(e) Vestcor Contribution. Vestcor shall contribute $100,000 to the 
Lift Ev'ry Voice and Sing Park at Closing. 

City would provide customary covenants, indemnifications and other 
protections for the benefit of Vestcor. Closing would be subject to the 
satisfaction of various conditions that are customary in transactions of 
the nature and magnitude of the Transaction. The foregoing would 
include: (a) indemnification for breach of representations and 
warranties, survival of representations and warranties for 24 months 
(except for those regarding tax, title, environmental, or authority or 
those fraudulently made, which will survive as permitted by the 
applicable statutes of limitations), (b) the absence of any material 

2 



adverse change in the condition (financial or otherwise) of the Real 
Property; and (c) each party to the Definitive Agreement would be 
responsible for its respective expenses (including broker's or finder's 
fees, legal fees and expenses and the fees and expenses of its other 
representatives). 

Governing Law and This Term Sheet and all Definitive Agreements shall be governed by 
Venue: Florida law and the parties thereto shall in all cases consent to the 

jurisdiction of the Florida courts with respect to any dispute arising 
thereunder. 

Entire Agreement: This Term Sheet contains the entire agreement between the Parties 
regarding the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior agreements 
or understandings between the Parties with respect thereto. 

Counterparts: This Term Sheet may be executed by facsimile signature and in 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which 
will constitute the same agreement. 

!SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS} 

3 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Term Sheet as of the date 
first set forth above. 

CITY: 

City of Jacksonville 

By: 

Name: -------------
Title: 

VESTCOR: 

Vestcor, Inc. 

By: 

Name: -------------
Title: 

4 



EXHIBIT A 
PROPERTY 

See attached. 



1f(M 

I 

1101 

1128 West Adams Street (RE# 074846 0000) 
I 062 West Adams Street (RE# 074844 0000) 
1050 West Adams Street (RE# 074843 0000) 

0 Johnson Street (RE# 074847 0000) 
0 Lee Street (a portion of RE# 074828 0005) 
I 005 West Forsyth Street (RE# 074828 0005) 

0 Johnson Street (RE# 074830 0000) 
125 Johnson Street (RE# 074834 0000) 

(:} 



EXHIBITB 
PROJECT 

See attached. 



d•~;~;;;;'~;•townhomes I 
• orct-.techn I i'lteoon I plcmo,g 

GROUP __________________________ _ _ _________________ __. 05.03.20 19 
DESIGN 

-=~;,,, '-• J~ r.: t -~lt 



Th'? Vestcor Companies 

downtown townhomes 01 
• ottMoctue I nteria\ I plarvw,g 

GROl;P 
DESIGN 

Perspective 

----------------- - ------- - ---------- 05.03 2019 ... ., 



The Veslcor Componies 

downtown townhomes 02 
GROUP Perspeclive 
DES I G N 05.032019 

I• a.:hitoch..., 1 1n1ei10n I p1amng 

..... 



downtown townhomes 
GROUP D I site/elev 
DESIGN 05.032019 



~ 

mffil 
> .,...,.. ..... , 1);~18 
____ Lr""'\. portng ,c-'\,~ __ r-

--i 

'CJ ~ 
polenllal parolel palcing 

Ttie VesPcor Companies 

downtown townhomes 
• =t,;tectu,& 1 lrltericrl t plonw,g 

tl .~ 

--r L ·7 
1 bed ; 1 5 balh · garage 

-.... ] 
w 
,D 

.bJ!L,_ 

-
2 2 bed 2 . .5 bolh · COJp0ii 

04 
plans 

Cl?OUP I I 05.03 2019 
DESIGN 



70 units 

70 garage, fcorpat 

30 olf-sheef pornng 

-·t 

Tile V· slcor Compon, 

' 

downtown townhomes 

':;. 
t:' 
a 
=-r, 

w adam, -, 

houston st. 

05 
GROL,r overall site 
D E S I G N 05,03 2019 

• c.ct.toch .. I nlencn I plav,ing 


	Add to May Mtg_Vesctor Presentation.pdf
	Structure Bookmarks

	RESOLUTION 2019-05-03_PACKET.pdf
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page




